A Look Back in Time
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St. George's Church Complex, 4816 Seventh Avenue, is a group of several buildings that includes the church, rectory, hall,
school, and convent, some of which are attached. Only the church and rectory addition, the convent, and the original
church hall are designated historic l[andmarks. All applicable standards of Section 15.04 of the City's Zoning Ordinance were
applied in evaluating this property, and it was determined that the historic buildings of the St. George's Church Complex are
architecturally and historically significant under Standards One and Three: 'exemplifies or reflects the City's cultural,
social...history; or embodies the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type or specimen...” The historic buildings of
the St. George's Church Complex are architecturally significant because they are fine examples of Romanesque Revival, Classical
Revival, Prairie Style-influenced, and early modern architectural styles. Although the buildings exhibit different architectural
styles, they are all fine examples of those styles and blend well with each other. The complex is also historically significant
because the church was established by an important ethnic group, the German Catholics of Kenosha. Ethnic churches are
historically significant because they represent the ethnic settlement patterns of nineteenth century Wisconsin. German

institutions are particularly significant because they represent the most important historic ethnic group in the state.

T main building of the complex is St. George's
Church, a large Romanesque Revival building
constructed of cream bricKs. ‘The church features a
complex gable roofline covered with standing seam metal.
BricK corbeling under the roof eaves resembles a frieze

with dentils and returned eaves. Openings are primarily

tall and narrow round-arched stained glass windows set |
into larger bricK reveals. Circular reveals also decorate tﬁe
gable peaks. A large tower projects from the center of the
main elevation. It features buttresses, round-arched :
openings, a belfry with Gothic arches, a paladin shaped
cornice with clocks on each side of the tower, and a tall

dome covered with standing seam metal.

.q;tacﬁa[ to the east end or rear of the church building is a rectory addition constructed in the Classical Revival
rchitectural style. ‘This two-story addition features a hip roof covered with clay tile and brown brick walls decorated

with shallow brick pilasters, stone shields, and stone squares and diamonds. The openings are sashes with single lower lights
and vertically-divided upper lights. ‘The main entrance is recessed behind a flat-roofed portal supported by tall, bricK piers.
Immediately to the south of the rectory addition is a two-story convent, also constructed of brown bricks. The convent is a
modern interpretation of the Classical Revival style. It features a raised foundation, a parapet style roof, a simple stone cornice
and water table, and multi-light sashes that are undecorated. A very shallow entry pavilion projects from the main elevation.

A wood paneled door with an arched transom sits behind a shallow arched portal. The portalis part of a stone frontispiece that



includes a tabbed stone surround and a modern, undecorated cornice. Above the entrance is an opening that is decorated with a

tabbed stone surround.

T the south of the convent is St. George's Hall, a two and one-half story building constructed with Classical Revival
details. ‘The building is constructed of cream bricks and features a low-pitched hip roof. The raised foundation is
constructed of cream bricKs [aid in a pattern that suggests a rusticated stone foundation. Openings in the foundation are
decorated with jacK arches and are filled in with bricKs or other modern materials. ‘The other openings of the building are
enclosed but they originally consisted of tall, narrow round-arched openings divided by brick spandrels. A larger opening sits
above the main entrance that is decorated with a stone cornice and broken pediment. The entrance consists of modern glass

doors, sidelights, and a transom.

S. George's Church was founded for the German Catholics of Kenosha in 1848 and one year later, they erected a small
church building. The congregation erected a school in 1857 and it was taken over by the School Sisters of Notre Dame in
1858. In 1875, a fire destroyed St. George's Church, School, and the Sister's Convent. A new school building was the first to be
erected after the fire and the new St. George's Church was completed in 1883. St. George's Hall was erected in 1900, and in
1922, the rectory addition was added to the church. In 1926, the original steeple of St. George's Church was replaced with the
current copper-clad dome, and in 1927-28, the church was remodeled, including the installation of a new metal roof. In 1940, a

new convent was completed for the Notre Dame Sisters and in 1966, the old school was replaced with a modern building.

Enica[[y, St. George's Church represents the growth and development of one of the largest ethnic churches in Kenosha.
ounded by German Catholics, St. George's Church was an important German institution in the City. Ethnic churches
were frequently organized in communities with ethnic enclaves, like Kenosha or MilwauKee during the nineteenth and early
twentieth centuries. And, since Germans were such a large and important ethnic group in Wisconsin, German churches are
pervasive in the state. ‘Ethnic churches not only provided religion, but also social services to the people who were members, and,
in some cases, the only historic resources associated with some ethnic groups are their churches. Many ethnic churches have
retained their ethnic ties, although most have expanded memberships that include other ethnic groups. Kenosha's ethnic
churches are historically significant because they represent the variety of immigrant settlement in the City and because they

reflect the important ethnic heritage of Kenosha.

f t. George's Church has since been renamed St. Elizabeth Church. Harborside Academy is a Charter School under Kenosha
Unified School District No. 1 housed in the St. Elizabeth's School building. A walk around the entire complex would

reward you with a variety of architectural styles in a small area. The beauty and details are impressive.



